MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF THE LTD BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD MONDAY, JULY 12, 2004

The City of Springfield council met in a work session in the Library Meeting Room, 225 Fifth Street, Springfield, Oregon, on Monday, July 12, 2004 at 6:30 p.m., with Mayor Leiken presiding.

ATTENDANCE

Present were Mayor Leiken and Councilors Ballew, Woodrow, Lundberg, Ralston and Fitch. Also present were City Manager Mike Kelly, Assistant City Manager Cynthia Pappas, City Attorney Joe Leahy, City Attorney Meg Kieran, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff.

1. Joint City Council and Lane Transit District (LTD) Work Session.

The Springfield City Council and LTD Board members took a tour of the new LTD South A Station from 5:30 – 6:15 p.m. They arrived back at city hall at 6:15 p.m. for a light dinner.

The work session followed at 6:30 pm. The City Council and LTD Board conduct a joint session every two years or when needed. The previous joint meeting was held on June 17, 2002. At that meeting BRT Phase 1, the Pioneer Parkway Corridor and the Springfield Station were discussed. The purpose of the joint meeting on July 12 is to provide updates on the Springfield Station, the Franklin EmX project, and the Pioneer Parkway EmX plan. The meeting included a tour of the Springfield Station project. LTD staff will present current information about the Franklin EmX project with emphasis on the South A and Glenwood improvements that are scheduled for 2004-06. LTD is targeting 2006 as the official opening of the Franklin EmX line. LTD staff is also working on the Pioneer Parkway EmX Environmental Impact Statement (EIS). In the coming year city staff will be reviewing and analyzing the EIS reports that will most likely contain impact and mitigation measures along Gateway and Harlow roads. City staff will be interested in how the Pioneer Parkway EmX line is planned for the Gateway/Beltline intersection, RiverBend street system, and the Martin Luther King Jr. Parkway.

LTD Vice-President Susan Ban introduced the Lane Transit District Board members who were present. They were members Hillary Wylie and Dave Kleger.

Mayor Leiken said it has been nearly two years since the last joint meeting with the City Council and LTD Board. He thanked LTD Board members for joining the council at city hall for this meeting. He said he enjoyed the tour of the South A Station. It has been fun to watch the station grow and to see how far it has come. Mayor Leiken gave a special thanks to Charlie Simmons, Facilities Services Manager from LTD. He noted this was the first newly built project in nearly thirty years in the downtown area. He turned the meeting over to Ms. Ban.

Ms. Ban asked if there were any other questions and comments regarding the South A Station. She also thanked council on behalf of the board for hosting the joint meeting. Councilor Woodrow said the station is coming along great and looks very nice. Mr. Kelly said driving by the site, you get a feel for it, but you don't get the depth until you actually go

onto the property. It is much larger than it looks from the road. There will be even more to it once the Park-N-Ride is developed. It is a very nice amenity to the downtown area. Mayor Leiken said this has been a good cooperation between the city and LTD, especially on the funding aspect on this project. The agencies have worked together in United Front to work with our congressional delegation to bring this project to completion. Ms. Ban said it has been a great partnership and hopes to continue to have future partnerships.

Councilor Fitch asked for an update on the leasing of the building. Mr. Simmons said they have had one proposal and other parties that were interested, but they do not have a proposal they can take forward to the board. They are working hard to find stable and quality businesses. He said city staff helped to brainstorm ideas of possible businesses. Mr. Kleger said LTD was not sure they were going to be able to get the Park-N-Ride when they first started. The city's help was considerable in that area.

Ms. Wylie thanked LTD staff for their efforts in helping with the Park-N-Ride. Councilor Lundberg said it is an asset that the station has a park-like setting and that should be known to the public. It is a nice place to be and has more potential than it appears. She is hopeful that people take the time to come down and see it in its entirety. It fits with what the city is trying to accomplish, particularly around the MillRace, in bringing the natural environment into our urban setting.

Mr. Kleger asked if there was a date for an opening ceremony. Mr. Simmons said they were working to find a date when Senator Smith could attend. September 18 could be a date for a grand opening for the public.

Ms. Ban said the first item on their agenda was the Franklin EmX. Mr. Kleger said this project has been very complicated involving the two cities, the state, and the transit district. It took a long time to get to this point and has not been simple. At this point, LTD is beginning utilities relocation on both sides of the line. Springfield Utility Board (SUB) will be moving its utilities on the stretch of the corridor between the new station and the bridge in about two weeks. That project will go forward as quickly as possible because LTD needs the lane along the south side of South A to make the station work properly in September. That relocation will involve both counter lines and the water line relocation. The water line relocation needed to occur anyway and this will allow it to be done at the same time to reduce the interference to the general public. There has been great cooperation with Springfield staff and leadership. LTD will be doing development work for the next two construction seasons and will go into operation of the Franklin EmX corridor in the fall of 2006. The vehicle has been selected and a Memorandum of Understanding between LTD and the manufacturer, New Flyer, has been signed. They are in the process of price negotiations at this time. There is a list of things in the agenda packet of the things LTD has achieved and some of the things they have not yet achieved.

Mr. Kleger discussed some of the issues with the vehicle. They are keeping their options as open as possible for future accessories. He discussed doors on each side of the vehicle which allows them to have a smaller footprint for the lines.

Councilor Ralston said there are seven properties that need to be acquired for the Franklin corridor. It is noted that agreement has been reached with five of the properties. He asked about the status with the other two properties. Mr. Kleger said the two could be taken by imminent domain if no other solution can be found. It is unfortunate that it needs to be done at all, but is necessary to get the bus lanes out of the stream of traffic. LTD is actively in negotiations with the property owners and is making some progress.

Councilor Ralston asked which two properties are affected. He was interested to know because he is often confronted by citizens regarding these situations. Mark Pangborn, Assistant General Manager from LTD, pointed out the properties affected on South A Street. One is Coen Motorcycle Shop and the other is a vacant property. LTD would buy just a small portion of each property to allow room for their lane, from three to six feet wide.

Councilor Fitch said the Franklin corridor was a compromise with the concerns of Glenwood residents and businesses. There is a need to get traffic through that area, but as the area redevelops, things could change drastically. Not forcing the exclusive right-of-way at this time was the best move allowing for that transition. Mr. Kleger said the critical thing is to get there at some point.

Discussion was held regarding exclusive right-of-way. Councilor Ralston said he is opposed to dedicated right-of-way for ridership.

Mayor Leiken commended the LTD Board for their efforts which allowed everyone to come to an agreement. LTD is looking at a vision, but there is a reality right now. It is worth looking to the future. He discussed the growth that is going to occur. Mr. Kleger said over the last ten years, they have had routes through parts of town with the heaviest development. That has caused as much as a twenty percent running time loss, which has cost LTD a great deal of money. Congestion has been the vast majority of the problems brought on by the construction and development in these areas. Other fixes lose their effectiveness over time if the buses cannot get out of the stream of traffic. As the bus system gets slower, so does the rest of traffic.

Mr. Hamm added that one of the priorities of the LTD Board is to enhance the corridor for all forms of traffic, not just the bus. They believe the exclusive lane takes the buses out of traffic and frees the curbside lanes to allow other traffic to move more smoothly. In many locations, the right-of-ways were established for whatever was developing there at the time. Today there are different demands on that utility and it needs to be expanded. The LTD Board doesn't like using imminent domain any more than anyone else. At the same time, looking to the future, there may not be the possibility as permanent structures are put in place or the cost is too high to accomplish gaining right-of-way. He noted the cities of Seattle and Wenatchee which are paying those types of prices now. The community has looked at ways to move traffic. LTD hopes that over time traffic counts in auto lanes and transit lanes will show improvement. It is a vision which is often hard to sell.

Ms. Ban said this is a vision they hope serves the community for twenty to thirty years. The board has given staff direction to look for opportunities now that will protect the

community's interest in efficient transportation. Ms. Ban said the next item was on Pioneer Parkway.

Mr. Hamm thanked council, Mr. Kelly and city staff. Although they don't always agree, he and staff are always able to pick up the phone to discuss these issues. He said they appreciate that relationship and want to build on that. He discussed some of the highlights of the Pioneer Parkway. LTD went through the public process, formed stakeholders' committees for different sections of the corridor and over time a preferred design and alignment was selected. LTD has a requirement by the Federal Transit Administration to go through an alternatives analysis. The analysis takes about two years to complete. That Environmental Impact Study (EIS) should be completed early in 2006. In the meantime, they are trying to find ways to secure funding for the Pioneer Parkway. The transportation bill is not yet authorized, but LTD is positioned to do their best to fund that corridor. That is the major priority for LTD Board and staff. They are looking to participate with public and private partners in terms of using in-kind services and right-of-way commitment to match the Federal dollars. He discussed the importance of going back to Washington DC as a united front to focus on those priorities.

Mr. Hamm said LTD would not proceed with anything without a majority vote from each jurisdiction to proceed. In 2006, when the EIS is complete, LTD will be back before the Springfield City Council and Lane County Board of Commissioners for approval. Nothing is set in stone at this point or funded yet. He reminded the council that LTD was looking at this corridor before PeaceHealth started to look at the RiverBend site. That enhanced the concept of what the Pioneer Parkway corridor and the Gateway connection might add to the City of Springfield and the transit system.

Mr. Hamm said that as LTD builds the Pioneer Parkway or any other corridor, they look well in advance at how this impacts their current fixed route system. It is not a separate system, rather an enhancement to their system in the major traveled corridors. They will structure their system to enhance it even more. LTD will continue to work with city staff to find the best solution. He believes this will be a successful operation and benefit the community long-term.

Councilor Fitch asked about funding. MLK Parkway is due to begin construction in 2005. She discussed the council passing a resolution in concurrence with Lane County including the additional right-of-way. She asked if Lane County would loan LTD the money to acquire the additional right-of-way and the associated costs. Mr. Hamm said he may have misspoken regarding this particular funding. LTD has local funding to some degree that they have set aside for years towards these projects. The board has authorized the expense of money to buy right-of-way and all the costs involved. They have also secured federal approval, because of the timing of the city's project, to allow some funding for this project.

Mr. Kleger said the board has approved to reschedule other capital needs to free up local

resources so they don't lose time on this project.

Ms. Wylie discussed the great opportunity in the redevelopment of the parkway allowing LTD to plan the transit along with development. That is how it needs to happen and this has been a great opportunity.

Mayor Leiken asked about funding from the congressional standpoint. He asked if everything was programmed in the T21 and if continued support from our congressional delegation was needed. He asked how the city could assist. Linda Lynch, Government Relations Manager from LTD, addressed the question. Ms. Lynch said both the House and Senate have passed their bills to reauthorize T21 and are in conference. The House version has named projects, but the Senate version does not. Senate projects will be added into the House bill. The conference committee has met three times, but has yet to agree on the first question, which is the level of funding that would guide the bill. We are at the end of the first year, what would be the first year of the next bill, which is usually a six year bill. There are several Eugene and Springfield projects already named in the House version. LTD asked to be named in part of the transit project, which would give them process authority to move forward. It then has to go to congress to be funded. She would not expect to lose their position in the House bill because there is no dollar amount attached, although there will be in subsequent years. She feels confident they will come out with the Pioneer Parkway authorized project.

Councilor Ballew said the only reason she voted for the additional ten feet was to move the project forward. The city can't wait for LTD, and will move ahead without them if needed. Councilor Fitch said it is good to see this opportunity happen.

Ms. Ban said there will be more opportunities to work as partners in the future. Ms. Wylie said going together to Washington DC with the United Front has been very beneficial and has brought the Springfield Council closer to the LTD Board members. Their working relationship is better since starting these partnerships.

Mr. Kleger said eight years ago he spoke before the Springfield Council about doing something with the Springfield Station. He has not worked in any other public process where people worked so hard and were so creative and disciplined as they were in the site selection and the steering committee for this station. It has been a delight to work with Springfield on the station project.

Councilor Ralston referred to page 10 of Attachment B included in the agenda packet and asked about the power lines. Discussion was held regarding the power lines.

Councilor Fitch discussed the citizen input that helped to determine the route that goes around Pioneer Parkway and over to the Gateway Mall. Ms. Wylie said the Park-N-Ride at the South A Station will be very beneficial for people wanting to go to the theater at the Gateway Mall.

Mr. Hamm said the staff and board of LTD are committed to the Springfield Station site as far as security and maintenance of that station. They want tenants that are long lasting and will provide quality service to the riders and citizens. If LTD fails in the city's expectations regarding security, he asked that they let LTD know. They have a plan on security for this

site and will continue to grow that. There is a lot of potential with the MillRace and the downtown redevelopment. Mr. Kleger said LTD's security staff said the Springfield Police do a great job working with their security.

Councilor Ballew asked about the current station on 5th and B Streets and if the improvements belong to LTD. Mr. Simmons said LTD was currently working with city staff regarding what the old station could be. They have presented a site plan to staff and will have further discussions. There is not much space there; it is a wide sidewalk with a twenty-five year old structure on it. It could be put back to the original condition, but there may be other visions. Mr. Hamm said it is similar to making improvements to adjacent property and then returning it to its original condition. They are still looking at a possible bus stop at or near that site to serve those going to the Library or City Hall.

Councilor Ballew asked if they would continue to use the small buses. Mr. Hamm said once they get the BRT running, they will look at alternatives for using the smaller buses in some circumstances, such as connector streets.

Ms. Wylie discussed her vision of having a historic rubber tired trolley make a route from the new station around to City Hall, the Historic District, the Senior Center and back to the station.

Mayor Leiken asked Springfield Public Works Director Dan Brown about the back of the property of the new LTD station abutting the MillRace project. He asked if it was part of Phase Two of the MillRace. He asked about the funding. Mr. Brown said the city is working on that, but the funding is not yet available. City Attorney Joe Leahy said there is a clause in our land use agreement with LTD on the siting of that station that they are to work with the City of Springfield in terms of making that work in that area. It envisions some reasonable financial assistance, although it doesn't say an amount.

Mayor Leiken thanked the LTD Board for the tour and for attending the work session.

Amy Sowa City Recorder

Board Secretary

Q:\Reference\Board Packet\2004\08\Special Mtg 8-11-04\BDMIN 07-12-04 Joint Mtg Spfld.doc